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          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Good

          3  afternoon, everybody. Welcome to the Subcommittee of

          4  Planning, Dispositions and Concessions, Subcommittee

          5  of the Land Use Committee of New York City Council.

          6  Today's date is Wednesday, September 5th, a date

          7  that has a first day of school quality to it for us

          8  in the City Council, but I'd like to welcome

          9  everybody who is here.  We have Committee Members

         10  Vincent Ignizio, Inez Dickens, Maria Baez and

         11  Council Member Diana Reyna all joining us today.

         12                 We're going to get right into it.  We

         13  have a relatively short agenda, but we're going to

         14  move right ahead.

         15                 The first item that we're going to

         16  turn to is Land Use No. 462, 462, S&J Metal Supply.

         17  I'd like to welcome HPD up to the witness stand.

         18  This is in Bronx Community Board One, C070404HAX, in

         19  the District of Council Member Melissa

         20  Mark-Viverito.  And Ms. Clark, if you could

         21  introduce yourself and your team and anything that

         22  you'd like to do, we'll open the hearing on Land Use

         23  462.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Good

         25  afternoon, and thank you, Council members.  I'm
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          2  Carol Clark.  I'm an Assistant Commissioner at HPD.

          3  I'm joined by Christina DeRose of EDC who is going

          4  to speak to this, as well.  But to give you the

          5  overview, L.U. 462 consists of the proposed

          6  disposition of one vacant City-owned building

          7  located at 544 East 134th Street to the New York

          8  City Economic Development Corporation, EDC.

          9                 HPD will sell the building to EDC

         10  which will convey the site to S&J Sheet Metal, Inc.

         11  for demolition to facilitate expansion of their

         12  business.  Council Member Viverito has reviewed the

         13  project and indicated her support.  And as I said,

         14  Christina of EDC is here to offer more detailed

         15  testimony and a presentation.

         16                 MR. DEROSE:  Good afternoon.  My name

         17  is Christina DeRose and I'm the Project Manager at

         18  the EDC for this project.  As you can see this in

         19  red is the property for sale and S&J indicated in

         20  the blue stripe completely surrounds the property.

         21  S&J is an industrial business and the property is

         22  currently zoned MX.  The development is an as of

         23  right development and EDC intends to further dispose

         24  of the property to S&J Sheet Metal which has been in

         25  business since the 1950's in the Bronx manufacturers
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          2  hip vent stylolites (phonetic) and other sheet metal

          3  products, and currently what happens in this

          4  operation is that forklifts are forced to exit onto

          5  the street, come around to enter this building.  And

          6  the sale of this vacant building will allow a more

          7  efficient use of the space and for S&J to transfer

          8  products within this building instead of having to

          9  go out onto the street.  It will also create the

         10  expansion of S&J's business and will create

         11  approximately 35 new jobs.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

         13  Let me, just to be clear, the blue shaded area that

         14  you indicated, that is all S&J Sheet Metal today and

         15  the red sliver is just an empty City- owned lot

         16  right smack in the middle of all that?

         17                 MS. DEROSE:  Yes, this picture, you

         18  can see here, all the way on the side is the --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Oh, so it's

         20  not empty, it's a building, so it's not a vacant

         21  lot, it's a vacant building?

         22                 MS. DEROSE:  Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay.  And

         24  the proposal here is for HPD to convey the property

         25  EDC, to convey it to S&J for demolition so that they
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          2  may bring their forklifts right into the middle as

          3  opposed to going around the outside?  Is that

          4  correct?

          5                 MS. DEROSE:  Well, it's also to help

          6  their business expand and create a more efficient

          7  space with their operation.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay, is this

          9  just a conveyance from EDC to S&J, or is this a

         10  sale?

         11                 MS. DEROSE: It's a land sale.  We had

         12  the property appraised by an independent appraiser

         13  and we are selling it as the appraised value.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Great, thank

         15  you.

         16                 Seeing no other members of the public

         17  wishing to testify on this item, you have consulted

         18  with Council Member Melissa Mark Viverito?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  And what is

         21  her view on the subject?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  She's

         23  in favor of the project.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

         25                 We will now close the hearing on Land
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          2  Use No. 462, S&J Metal Supply, Bronx Community Board

          3  One, C070404HAX and move onto Land Use No. 463, the

          4  Herbert Street Condominiums in the District of

          5  Council Member Diana Reyna who is joining us today.

          6  This is in Brooklyn Community Board One, C070408HAK.

          7  Ms. Clark.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Thank

          9  you.  I'm going to offer an introduction and then I

         10  know representatives of North Brooklyn Development

         11  Corporation are here to offer testimony along with

         12  their consultant.

         13                 This consists of the proposed

         14  disposition of one vacant City- owned building

         15  located at 37- 43 Herbert Street for rehabilitation

         16  under HPD's new Foundations Program.  The sponsor,

         17  North Brooklyn Development Corporation, will

         18  rehabilitate the former Police Precinct as housing.

         19  When completed, the project known as Herbert Street

         20  Condos will provide 14 condominium units for sale to

         21  low and moderate income individuals and families.

         22  Council Member Reyna has reviewed the project and

         23  indicated her support.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

         25  I'm going to give Council Member Reyna an
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          2  opportunity to express her views herself.

          3                 Council Member.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Thank you Mr.

          5  Chair.  I just wanted to thank this Committee and

          6  you as the Chair of this Committee on the

          7  opportunity to present this project.  This has been

          8  a baby that has been developed throughout the years.

          9    It used to be an old carriage precinct house and

         10  then became the headquarters for the narcotics unit

         11  for Brooklyn North and now has been sitting vacant

         12  for a number of years.  And we're finally putting

         13  some great use to it.  Despite the fact that we're

         14  undergoing a huge boom that creates a market where a

         15  lot of displacement in our community is happening

         16  this will bring the opportunity for families,

         17  working families who are eager to purchase an

         18  affordable apartment.  We will have the liberty of

         19  marketing 14 units for our working residents of

         20  Community Board One to be able to purchase

         21  condominiums at an affordable rate for the first

         22  time ever.  This structure has been also funded in a

         23  combination of levels where I committed $1.5 million

         24  to continue the affordability aspect which then

         25  leveraged other monies, so this truly should become
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          2  an example.  The epitome of what affordable housing

          3  in the condominium sector should look like

          4  throughout the City of New York.  And I value the

          5  days when we can actually open the doors and welcome

          6  the 14 new families.  I know that Rich Masyr, the

          7  Executive Director, is not here but he's well

          8  represented by Margaret who has a few words to say,

          9  and I wanted to just ensure and urge a favorable

         10  vote for this project and know that it was in your

         11  hearts that this project will service this great

         12  City of New York.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you

         14  very much Council Member Reyna and Ms. Clark.  Just

         15  give us a moment.  We're going to bring up Margaret

         16  Kostecki from the North Brooklyn Development

         17  Corporation, along with Richard Comerford to speak

         18  in favor of this application.

         19                 And as soon as you're ready you can

         20  go ahead.  You just push the button if it is not

         21  already pushed in.

         22                 MS. KOSTECKI:  Thank you.  Hi, my

         23  name is Margaret Kostecki, I'm the Associate

         24  Director of North Brooklyn Development Corporation

         25  and the Property Manager of all of our housing
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          2  developments that we've developed so far.  I would

          3  like to just say our great gratitude for Councilman

          4  Diana Reyna to back up this project from day one.

          5  We have started looking at this site over ten years

          6  ago and it was impossible to get it until

          7  Councilwoman Reyna got involved in this and gave us

          8  great support and push to get this site and to

          9  secure financing to make this project viable.

         10                 In this neighborhood where million

         11  dollar condominiums are popping up like mushrooms

         12  and our organization serves hundreds and hundreds of

         13  people every year who are being displaced from our

         14  neighborhood and to be able to provide them with at

         15  least 14 units of affordable housing to first time

         16  home buyers is a great thing to do.

         17                 MR. COMERFORD:  Council Member's, I'm

         18  basically here just to answer any particular

         19  questions --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  If you could

         21  just state your name before you get started.

         22                 MR. COMERFORD:  Sure, I'm Richard L.

         23  Comerford and I'm a Housing Consultant for North

         24  Brooklyn Development Corp.

         25                 I just would like to make one
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          2  additional point and that is when we started putting

          3  together the feasibility for this project, of course

          4  we're dealing with a landmarks building, it's very

          5  expensive to restore and deal with a landmarks

          6  building, the Councilwoman gave us a grant.  We were

          7  able to set the incomes at that point about up to

          8  130 percent AMI, but with the additional support

          9  from the Councilwoman as well as the Borough

         10  President we've now been able to reduce the income

         11  requirement to under 110 percent of area median

         12  income.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you

         14  very much.  And seeing no questions or other members

         15  of the public wishing to testify we thank you both

         16  for your presence and for all of your hard work, and

         17  of course to Council Member Reyna for all of her

         18  work on this application, Land Use No. 463.  And

         19  with that we will close the hearing on Land Use 463

         20  C070408HAK and open the hearing on land related Land

         21  Use No. 531 to 533.  I will welcome HPD back up to

         22  the witness stand Ms. Clark.  This is the Cook

         23  Street Housing Development.  Brooklyn Community

         24  Board One C070432ZMK C070433HAK, and C070434ZSK.  I

         25  should note that we've been joined by Council Member
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          2  Sara Gonzalez, and with that Ms. Clark if you could

          3  introduce the related Land Use numbers 531 to 533.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:

          5  Surely, L.U. 531 consists of the proposed amendments

          6  of the zoning map as outlined in the calendar

          7  agenda.  This changes an R6 district to an R7A

          8  district and eliminates C1- 3 and C2- 3 districts to

          9  establish a C1- 4 and a C2- 4 district on Block

         10  3113.  Then L.U. 532, known as Cook Street Housing

         11  consists of the proposed disposition of eight City

         12  owned lots located at 36- 46 Varet Street and 19- 25

         13  Cook Street in HPD's negotiated sale program.

         14                 The proposed sponsor, Cook Street

         15  Housing LLC, will construct two eight story

         16  buildings on the project area which includes eight

         17  City- owned and two privately owned vacant lots.

         18  When completed, the project will provide 152

         19  residential units over 6,000 square feet of

         20  commercial space and a parking lot with 94 public

         21  parking spaces.  Representatives of Cook Street

         22  Housing and others are here I know to offer

         23  testimony.

         24                 But lastly on L.U. 533, this

         25  application is for a special permit pursuant to
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          2  section 74- 511 of the zoning resolution to allow an

          3  unattended public parking garage with a maximum

          4  capacity of 94 spaces on the ground floor of the

          5  proposed mixed- use development known as Cook Street

          6  Housing.  Council Member Reyna has reviewed all of

          7  these actions, has had extensive dialog with the

          8  sponsors, residents, business owners and HPD.  She

          9  has indicated to HPD that she will vote in favor of

         10  these three items today, but I know she does have

         11  continuing concerns.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Ms. Clark,

         13  let me just ask a couple of questions here. First is

         14  the process whereby Cook Street Housing was selected

         15  as the developer here.  What was that process?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  I

         17  would like to allow the testimony to be offered by

         18  the applicant to fill the record with that and then

         19  come back to that question Chairman, if that's all

         20  right?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  That's fine.

         22  The other question is, these are eight vacant --

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Eight

         24  vacant City owned lots until when the proposed

         25  developer came to us with the acquisition of the
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          2  private lots in hand, they went through our site

          3  control procedures that we've described and when

          4  indeed there are additional lots that are in hand

          5  that the private developer proposes a development

          6  they get preferential treatment in our site control

          7  process.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  And there is

          9  an unattended parking lot as one of the end results

         10  of this application, is that right?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  That's

         12  correct.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Explain just

         14  the thought process behind that.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  If I

         16  could I would prefer to allow the other pieces of

         17  this testimony to go forward --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, just to

         19  be clear, when you say the other pieces of testimony

         20   --

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  The

         22  Cook Street Housing is here --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Cook Street

         24  is here --

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  --
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          2  Father O'Shea is here, I know that both Ron Moelis

          3  and Martin Dunn who are the proposed sponsors, the

          4  developers have something to say and I believe that

          5  people from the Graham Avenue Merchant Association

          6  are here.  I'm also joined by the Assistant

          7  Commissioner of Planning and Pipeline Development

          8  Shampa Chanda at HPD so that if once the other

          9  pieces of testimony have gone forward if you have

         10  further questions, I'd be delighted to come back and

         11  answer them.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, we will

         13  hold those and let me just see who we're going to

         14  call up first.

         15                 I have representatives from L&M

         16  Equity, Dunn Development and this is a question for

         17  you Ms. Clark, are those the representatives of Cook

         18  Street?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  That's

         20  correct, they are the proposed --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  So why don't

         22  we start with them?  Mr. Ron Moelis and Martin Dunn.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Thank

         24  you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.
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          2                 Welcome and as soon as you're ready

          3  just introduce yourselves and you can go ahead and

          4  get started.

          5                 MR. DUNN:  Okay, Martin Dunn from

          6  Dunn Development Corp.  I'll testify first.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  That's fine,

          8  yes, thank you.

          9                 MR. DUNN:  So the projects have been

         10  named since the action was initiated.  It's been

         11  named Reverend Donald J. Kennacord (phonetic), in

         12  memory of the long time Pastor of All Saints Church

         13  who is an advocate for affordable housing.  As

         14  indicated in Development Corp and L&M Equity

         15  participants are the co- developers and Churches

         16  United Corp is a local community sponsor.  This

         17  project will be the first off site new construction

         18  of affordable housing project to make use of the new

         19  inclusionary housing program of the Williamsburg

         20  Greenpoint Rezoning Initiative.  We've been working

         21  on this for close to two years and have had numerous

         22  meetings with local stakeholders, including

         23  Councilman Reyna, the Community Board, local

         24  merchants and the Merchants Association.  We also

         25  did outreach with a mailing to 10,000 households in
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          2  the neighborhood and went door to door along Graham

          3  Avenue.  We explored a lot of different options and

          4  came up with something that we think balanced all

          5  the competing demands for the site.

          6                 We want to acknowledge Councilwoman

          7  Reyna for all her work and input on the project.  It

          8  was nearly two years ago in November 2005 that we

          9  started meeting with the Councilwoman to discuss the

         10  project and there's a number of components of the

         11  project that were the direct result of her input

         12  including inclusion of a retail space in the project

         13  which is targeted to a family restaurant which is in

         14  need in the community, decking over the parking

         15  garage to both shield the parking from neighbors and

         16  residents and to create a large open space for

         17  building residents, lowering the affordability

         18  targets below what the inclusionary program

         19  required, and lowering the parking rates to make it

         20  more affordable.

         21                 As indicated, it's 152 units in three

         22  eight story buildings, 6,400 square feet of retail

         23  and a 94 space public parking garage.  One hundred

         24  percent of the residential units will be permanently

         25  affordable serving families below 40 percent and 60
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          2  percent of area median income, which equals about

          3  $18,000 to $50,000.

          4                 We have pictures of both the open

          5  space areas and the building facade.  We have a lot

          6  of cast zone (phonetic) and nice architectural

          7  elements.  Each of the buildings will have community

          8  rooms and laundry rooms, a lot of children's play

          9  spaces, a green roof on the parking garage and a lot

         10  of energy efficient features.

         11                 In terms of the parking, as part of

         12  the agreement to transfer control of the lot to HPD

         13  the Department of Transportation required that we

         14  replace 75 percent of the 83 existing parking spaces

         15  so that would require 62 spaces.  Our design has 94

         16  spaces, 32 more than was required by DOT and 11 more

         17  than exists there now. This will be attended

         18  parking.  Of those 94 parking spaces, 36 will be on

         19  stackers leaving 58 parking spaces at grade.  In

         20  addition to those 94 spaces there's ten additional

         21  reservoir spaces for a total of 104.  The existing

         22  parking lot is underutilized the vast majority of

         23  time as verified by DOT, by our own repeated visits

         24  to the site, and from feedback from local residents,

         25  a number of whom will testify here today.  As I
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          2  mentioned earlier, at the request of the

          3  Councilwoman we agreed to limit parking rates to two

          4  dollars per hour so it remains affordable and we

          5  also have agreed to look into discounted parking

          6  rates for Boricua College students and staff.  At

          7  the request of the Community Board we also added a

          8  dedicated bicycling parking area accessible from the

          9  parking garage.  The site is also located one block

         10  from subways and bus lines.

         11                 A small but vocal group of local

         12  property and business owners have raised objections

         13  about the type of parking, that it is valet parking

         14  and not self parking, however, we think that the

         15  project will have a very positive impact on local

         16  merchants.  The number of parking spaces will be

         17  increased, 152 new households will come to the

         18  neighborhood that will patronize their stores.  The

         19  project residents will have roughly $5.3 million in

         20  annual income and by having affordable rents instead

         21  of what most low income residents are paying, more

         22  than half of their income towards rent, it will

         23  generate a lot more disposable income to spend

         24  locally.

         25                 I just wanted to point out one other
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          2  thing that the Community Board voted 40 to zero in

          3  favor of the project which is a testament to the

          4  widespread support for this project.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Did you have

          7  something to add?

          8                 MR. MOELIS:  My name.  I'm Ron Moelis

          9  from L&M, I'm a partner with Dunn Development and

         10  Martin --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  I'm not sure

         12  your microphone is on, so hit the button.

         13                 MR. MOELIS:  Okay.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  There you go.

         15                 MR. MOELIS:  Okay, sorry about that.

         16  Ron Moelis from L&M.  I'm a partner with Martin at

         17  Dunn Development.  Martin did a pretty comprehensive

         18  job.  I just want to also mention, which he did, but

         19  reiterate the fact that a lot of the issues that

         20  came up here with the Merchants Association were

         21  addressed early and often in the process and

         22  Councilwoman Reyna had at least five or six meetings

         23  that I was at, and probably more that I wasn't, to

         24  try to bring the sides to a point of agreement and

         25  as recently as a couple weeks ago we sat down and
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          2  we're still trying.  We would like to work with the

          3  local merchants and we think we've done a lot to

          4  accommodate some of their needs, but we think the

          5  overall benefits of the project are addressed in

          6  what we've done here.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

          8  We have questions from Council Member Dickens in a

          9  moment.  Let me just ask very quickly, we have you

         10  sir from L&M Equity, we have Dunn Development

         11  Corporation and we have Cook Street Housing.  Can

         12  you just explain to us the interrelationship between

         13  all of these entities?

         14                 MR. DUNN:  Cook Street Housing, the

         15  project is going to be financed partially with

         16  Federal Loan, and Federal Tax Credits requires that

         17  the limited partnership or limited liability

         18  company, 99.99 percent of that will go to a tax

         19  credit investor.  So our two companies will

         20  effectively have a very small interest in the tax

         21  credits but will be managing the project.  So we

         22  control the managing member of Cook Street Housing

         23  LLC.  It's a structure required for the type of

         24  financing.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay got it.
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          2  So Cook Street Housing is actually the entity but

          3  you all are --

          4                 MR. DUNN:  Managing member.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  -- Managing,

          6  okay, got it. And the other question is, on the

          7  parking lot the DOT required that you replace 75

          8  percent of the 83 and I understand that you went

          9  above that, what sort of parking was it before, was

         10  it public parking?  What kind of parking was it?

         11                 MR. DUNN:  It's a muni lot, now muni

         12  meter lot, so it's striped spaces with muni meters

         13  and there are permitted spots so people can have

         14  monthly permits.  It's a park and ride site so some

         15  people have monthly permits and park and commute but

         16  it's self park with muni meters.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Got it.

         18  Council Member Dickens.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you

         20  Mr. Chair.  The present zoning, at least in part, is

         21  R6 particularly at Varet and Graham.  The amendment

         22  to do the upzoning to a R7A is that to allow for the

         23  urban development action area in order for the

         24  project to have a great FAR?

         25                 MR. DUNN:  The rezoning, the change
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          2  from R5 to R7A accomplished several things.  Number

          3  one was to increase the FAR to generate more

          4  affordable housing.  It was also to create

          5  contextual height limits.  Right now in an R6 we

          6  don't have height limits.  We could do a 12 story

          7  building on the center of that site.  By going to

          8  the R7A, while we get a higher FAR we have height

          9  limits that are much more contextual to the

         10  neighborhood.  So we've come up with buildings that

         11  are very contextual to the rest of the block. A

         12  number of existing buildings on the block were built

         13  at densities closer to R7A than to R6.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you so

         15  much.  And I also notice that there's a special

         16  permit to the existing zoning to allow for the

         17  parking garage in a mixed- use building.  Now does

         18  this special permit and the amendment, does this

         19  become permanent as it relates to the deed and the

         20  zoning of the area or is it a 99 year lease, just

         21  what?  Can you explain that to me?

         22                 MR. DUNN:  The special permit was

         23  required because we've made it a garage as opposed

         24  to a lot, a public parking garage is only allowed by

         25  special permit.  Because we wanted it not to be an
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          2  open air lot where you'd have the car fumes and the

          3  noise, we wanted to both screen that from the

          4  residents and the neighbors but also we created by

          5  decking of the parking and making a garage, we

          6  created a 12,000 square foot outdoor green roof and

          7  play space. And again, this was something that

          8  Councilwomen Reyna encouraged us to do.  The special

          9  permit allows us to do it.  It's going to be the

         10  City's Land Disposition Agreement that will

         11  permanently restrict us to using that as public

         12  parking.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you so

         14  much.  These were questions that I had as it relates

         15  to something in another Council Member's District,

         16  so I was picking your brain.  So thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you

         18  Council Member Dickens.  We're now going to move to

         19  a few other individuals who want to testify on this

         20  item, so we thank you for your presence.

         21                 MR. DUNN:  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Now we're

         23  going to hear from Father Jim O'Shea, Robert Solano,

         24  and Anita Dunbar.  I'm going to bring you all up as

         25  a panel, so come up together and then after that
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          2  we'll hear from Matt Sollett, Esteban Duran and Juan

          3  Ramos. So we'll start with our first panel.

          4                 Welcome.

          5                 FATHER O'SHEA:  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  As soon as

          7  you're ready Father you can go ahead and just make

          8  sure that that microphone is on.  See the button --

          9                 FATHER O'SHEA:  There you go, it's

         10  on.  Thank you Mr. Chair, thank you Members of the

         11  Committee today.  I just have three --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Why don't you

         13  go ahead and state your name.

         14                 FATHER O'SHEA:  Oh, I'm sorry, Jim

         15  O'Shea, I'm the Director of Churches United which is

         16  an organization of about 25 parishes and churches in

         17  North Brooklyn, tens of thousands of people working

         18  together for affordable housing, exactly what we're

         19  talking about today.

         20                 I just want to make three brief

         21  points about the project.  The first is about the

         22  process, just to testify that there has been at

         23  least a two year process of dialog of working

         24  together with many people in the community.  I

         25  commend Councilwoman Reyna also for giving

                                                            27

          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2  leadership on that, for bringing people together to

          3  the table to try to make as much of a win win as

          4  possible.  So that process has gone on.  It's been

          5  done I think with integrity, with sincerity, and I

          6  think we should be proud of what it is and at the

          7  end of the day people have to make their own

          8  decisions, but the process did take place.

          9                 The second thing is that this project

         10  really for us represents a response, as limited as

         11  it is, to the suffering of our families.  This is a

         12  very personal issue to people in North Brooklyn,

         13  that housing, and you'll hear real people of North

         14  Brooklyn testify, housing is a critical issue, it's

         15  an immediate need, people are suffering, this

         16  project is excellent, it's 152 units, maybe it's a

         17  drop in the bucket but it's a great step, we need

         18  it, and it really responds directly to human

         19  suffering.

         20                 My third point is simply that time is

         21  of the essence.  You know every day we listen to

         22  people, families, you know it's not something that

         23  can be postponed, people need homes, it's happening

         24  today, now as we speak so I would just thank you for

         25  your interest in this project and also ask you to,
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          2  as I know you do, please use your own positions in

          3  authority and goodness to make sure this project

          4  moves along as quickly as possible.  So we thank you

          5  for all your help with this.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you

          7  Father, we appreciate your testimony.  Now Mr.

          8  Solano.

          9                 MR. SOLANO:  My name is Robert

         10  Solano, and it's always tough to follow up Father

         11  Jim O'Shea, but I'll try my best. Just want to talk

         12  about the project and make one big point.  I live

         13  across the street from the project right now.  It's

         14  a 50/50 market rate and affordable unit.  It was

         15  actually an old catholic high school, All Saints

         16  High School, and Father Ken worked about ten years

         17  to try to convert it into the high school to

         18  affordable condos or coops.  And what actually

         19  happened was it became a little too expensive with

         20  all the monies involved and the banks and in the end

         21  it started at $80,000 for an apartment and rose to

         22  about $250 in the end.  So it kind of displaced most

         23  of the people that he wanted to serve right around

         24  the time that he passed away.  So it was an

         25  unfortunate situation for him that he couldn't fully
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          2  live the dream that he wanted, but at least serve

          3  most of the people that lived in the neighborhood,

          4  and not all.  When this project came about, which is

          5  across the street, with all these units that now

          6  would specifically serve his parishioners that go to

          7  church there and the people of the community that

          8  are dying for affordable housing, I think that

          9  finally that opportunity can happen and we can live

         10  side by side right across the street.

         11                 And the other point that I wanted to

         12  make, I lied I said one point and I'll make two

         13  points, was the Graham lot of Graham Avenue, which

         14  is where we shop and I really want to make it seem

         15  like it's that mom-and-pop type of even Devoli

         16  Avenue.  It's just really a mom-and-pop type of

         17  stores where you walk to, it's not a big type of

         18  Circuit City or something that type of large, or

         19  Cosco, where you have to drive to, it's the type of

         20  store that you walk down, you buy a couple of

         21  shirts, you buy something where the neighborhood

         22  really walks to.  It's not something you drive to.

         23  So the parking lot issue to me, and I live there all

         24  the time, is mostly people walk there and they come

         25  back to their places, so I just think that anything
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          2  that replaces parking, or the extreme issues with

          3  the parking is really something that is uncalled for

          4  for people that live there.  They really need,

          5  number one issue, is apartments and housing and

          6  affordable apartment housing so this project will

          7  serve those needs.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you,

          9  Mr. Solano, and now Ms. Dunbar.   As soon as you're

         10  ready.

         11                 Why don't you hit that button one

         12  more time.

         13                 MS. DUNBAR:  Good afternoon Council

         14  Members.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Can you

         16  introduce yourself please?

         17                 MS. DUNBAR:  My name is Anita Dunbar

         18  and it's a pleasure to be here.  I had a little

         19  problem finding it, but I made it with your help, I

         20  called and they gave me directions, so I'm happy.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Great.

         22                 MS. DUNBAR:  I just want to make a

         23  couple of points. I live in the neighborhood, and

         24  I've lived in the neighborhood for 57 years.  I'm

         25  like four blocks from Graham Avenue.  I walk, I take
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          2  my push cart, I take my tote bag if I'm only going

          3  to get something small, and most of the people in

          4  the area walk to Graham Avenue. Very few people

          5  drive.  If they drive it's normally a situation

          6  where they're going to pick up furniture and nine

          7  times out of ten, in my case it would mean me going

          8  in to purchase and then I would call my daughter and

          9  ask her, okay I made the purchase, can you come and

         10  pick it up now.  It's not a situation where I'm ever

         11  going to drive to Graham Avenue.  I wouldn't accept

         12  a ride to Graham Avenue because I could get there

         13  faster with the traffic.

         14                 Affordable housing is necessary and

         15  it's necessary on so many points.  And the biggest

         16  point is that with housing the rents are going up

         17  all over the place, no one's salary is going up to

         18  meet that rent.  So it makes affordable housing all

         19  the more appreciable for me who can't afford to live

         20  and pay $1,000 rent. I just can't afford it, but not

         21  for nothing, but if I hit the lotto tomorrow, I

         22  wouldn't pay $1,000 rent.  It just doesn't make any

         23  sense.  I think in some cases we're just being

         24  gorged in, we have no other choice so we accept.  I

         25  don't want to accept, I want affordable housing in
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          2  every building that goes up in New York.  I think

          3  there should be affordable housing, we need it, it's

          4  vital. Okay, parking lots are fine, I don't own a

          5  car, all right, but we need affordable housing and

          6  that's the major concern here, affordable housing.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you Ms.

          9  Dunbar, we appreciate your comments and certainly

         10  the need to include affordable housing in any

         11  development in New York City.  I think it is

         12  recognized by all of us and we appreciate your

         13  comments.  So, with that, let me thank all of you

         14  for being here and we're going to move to our next

         15  panel, and by the way Ms. Dunbar we do hope you hit

         16  the lotto in any event.

         17                 We've got Matt Sollett and Esteban

         18  Duran and Juan Ramos.  Come join us.

         19                 Welcome and let's start with Mr.

         20  Sollett, if I'm pronouncing that correctly.  Just go

         21  ahead and introduce yourself and get started.

         22                 MR. SOLLETT:  Yes, that's right,

         23  that's the right pronunciation.  I just want to

         24  thank the Committee for allowing me a few minutes to

         25  speak and for everyone else to address this issue.
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          2  My name is Matt Sollett, I am a Williamsburg

          3  Community resident and have been for a few years

          4  now.  I am also the Outreach Coordinator for

          5  Churches United Corp.  As part of my job at Churches

          6  United I went out to Graham Avenue last October as

          7  part of an outreach campaign to the merchants, a

          8  direct outreach campaign.  Really the point being to

          9  speak to the merchants directly to let them know

         10  what the main points of the development plans were

         11  again to bring affordable housing to the community.

         12  And certainly, I would say I spoke to about 100

         13  merchants or so up and down the blocks of Graham

         14  Avenue, that commercial center.  You know certainly

         15  there were some merchants who were indifferent,

         16  maybe there were one or two who did have concerns

         17  about parking, but really it seemed to me that most

         18  of them either supported the housing or actually

         19  were very excited. There was one manager of a pet

         20  shop on Graham Avenue that not only told me she

         21  supported the housing but she wanted to know how she

         22  could get an application for the housing.  So

         23  certainly there seems to be a good amount of

         24  support, even amongst the merchants on Graham

         25  Avenue.  I think really, not to take up too much
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          2  time, I just want to say that I really think the

          3  development of this affordable housing, affordable

          4  housing in general, but certainly this development

          5  in particular, is really a matter of social justice.

          6    The low income working class people of

          7  Williamsburg and North Brooklyn and all of New York

          8  City certainly deserve affordable housing and I

          9  think this is a great opportunity to bring them that

         10  housing.

         11                 That's all.  Thank you very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

         13  Thank you for being here and next up is Mr. Duran.

         14                 MR. DURAN:  Thank you Councilman

         15  Garodnick and the rest of the Members in the

         16  Committee.  My name is Esteban Duran. I am a Member

         17  of Community Board One, in Williamsburg, Brooklyn. I

         18  just want to say that I'm an avid baseball fan and

         19  because of that, and we are in September, I just

         20  want to say that this project is a home run.  All

         21  the Council has to do here is swing the bat and this

         22  one's going over the fence just like Arod has 46 or

         23  47 times already this year.

         24                 So as part of Churches United, the

         25  work that we've done, we took an informal poll, so I
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          2  stood on that municipal lot one hot summer day in

          3  2006 and just timed most of the cars that were there

          4  and it was very quickly in and out.  A lot of the

          5  times what people would do is drive through one end

          6  of the block and just to circle and like cut, having

          7  to go through Graham Avenue, and the parking

          8  structure that's going to be there now is going to

          9  be a lot better because it number one includes more

         10  parking space, it's going to be valeted, and just

         11  again more parking space.  Most of the time, as the

         12  other person that was here commented, most of the

         13  people that shop in Graham Avenue do walk there and

         14  at the Community Board One meeting last Fall, or

         15  actually earlier this year, most of the people there

         16  were committed to continue being Graham Avenue

         17  shoppers and they said they will continue to go

         18  there and there were actually people from other

         19  boroughs who continued to shop at Graham Avenue and

         20  they said they would not be affected by the loss of

         21  the municipal lot, mainly due to the fact that

         22  curbside parking is readily available so they're

         23  able to access parking that way.

         24                 In all of this, the final thing I

         25  want to say is, just to echo on the comments that
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          2  Father Jim said, which is that the affordable

          3  housing is much needed and this is just a drop in

          4  the bucket.  So there are so many benefits to having

          5  152 affordable housing units, as I'm sure every

          6  single Council Member here gets bombarded by calls

          7  from constituents needing more affordable housing.

          8  This is just something that is much needed and

          9  overdue. So, please play the role of Arod and swing

         10  that bat and hit that home run.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you

         13  very much for that and for your analogy.  We

         14  appreciate it.

         15                 Also, Mr. Ramos.

         16                 MR. RAMOS:  Good afternoon.  My name

         17  is Juan Ramos. I'm a Member of Churches United.  I'm

         18  a parish member at Our Lady of Monserrate, which is

         19  one of the 25 parishes that are represented by

         20  Churches United.

         21                 Most of the people you've heard today

         22  have spoken to you about this beautiful building

         23  that you see behind me.  They've spoken to you about

         24  all the different types of assessments they've made

         25  around the area.  I want to start off by talking
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          2  about something different.  I want to talk to you

          3  about people.  People that are going through a

          4  crisis right now in their community regarding their

          5  housing or where they're going to be tomorrow.  One

          6  of the things that this project has provided already

          7  for me, and for some of the people that I know in my

          8  community, is hope.  The conversations have gone

          9  from being at church or being in the community

         10  talking about where am I going to move to, to afford

         11  an apartment, to having hope that they're going to

         12  be one of the ones that get one of these apartments

         13  in the community.  So already to me that's already a

         14  home run.  The fact that we've gone from

         15  hopelessness to hope is a positive.

         16                 The people in the community want this

         17  project, they support the project, they've done

         18  everything they can by showing up at different

         19  meetings to be in support of the project, and again

         20  I think the developer has tried to meet all the

         21  needs that were asked of him, especially regarding

         22  the parking spot itself.  On any given day you can

         23  go through this parking lot and if it's half full

         24  then you're lucky.  But most of the time it's really

         25  underserved.  Just the other day I myself parked
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          2  there.  I parked and then I went shopping and when I

          3  came back one of the cars next to me was vandalized,

          4  which is the case most of the time.  So the fact

          5  that they've decided to have valet parking and have

          6  somebody watching people's cars at all times I think

          7  is a positive, while adding more space to the

          8  project itself.  So, all together what I just want

          9  to say is that if you support this project you're

         10  not only supporting the project itself, but your

         11  supporting the people of this neighborhood who are

         12  in desperate need of housing.  And that's the end of

         13  my testimony.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Great, thank

         15  you very much. And thanks to all of you for your

         16  presence and for your advocacy. We appreciate it and

         17  we have one other person who wants to testify on

         18  this item.  So we'll thank you and we're going to

         19  bring up Ms. Betty Cooney from the Graham Avenue

         20  BID.  Ms. Cooney, come right on up and as soon as

         21  you're ready, you can introduce yourself and begin.

         22  You need to turn the microphone on.

         23                 MS. COONEY:  That is better.  My name

         24  is Betty Cooney, I'm the Executive Director of the

         25  Graham Avenue Business Improvement District.  I've
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          2  been in this community for five years working there

          3  seeing how the stores run.  I was listening to the

          4  testimony and this has happened at the other

          5  hearings that we've been through and a lot of things

          6  can be painted to show one side of the picture.  I

          7  want to make very clear that the Graham Avenue

          8  Business Improvement District and also the Graham

          9  Avenue Merchant's Association which are two

         10  different entities but we do represent the same

         11  people have been very clear that we are not against

         12  the affordable housing.  We have never opposed it

         13  from day one.  They will tell you how they've met

         14  with us many times and we have not changed what we

         15  asked for and nothing has been done to meet the

         16  things that we have requested, although it could

         17  have been built into the original plans it was not

         18  built into the original plans. And it's very

         19  important to understand that we understand the need

         20  for housing, we do, people are desperate, we are

         21  surrounded by City housing.  What these diagrams

         22  don't show you is that the BID is like one corridor

         23  of 12 blocks that goes down and is surrounded by

         24  City housing.  There is City housing to the west,

         25  the east, the south and the north.  We do need to

                                                            40

          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2  draw customers from outside of these communities,

          3  these low income communities.  We value these people

          4  as our shoppers but we need to draw other people

          5  into this community.  We need to do that to grow.

          6  We need to do that to exist.  We've been hearing

          7  about how people are being displaced because of

          8  rents rising.  Well the rents for the stores have

          9  risen. We have stores paying $18,000 a month for

         10  their store sites. Eighteen thousand dollars and a

         11  young man just told you how these are small stores,

         12  yes they are small stores.  We don't want to

         13  displace merchants.  We don't' want to displace the

         14  jobs that they provide in the very community that

         15  you want to build affordable housing for.  The two

         16  do not have to be an either- or situation. Housing

         17  can be placed there and the accommodation for the

         18  proper parking and the proper egress in the entrance

         19  to this project can also be done.  What they haven't

         20  also mentioned is that the 152 units of housing that

         21  they're going to put there is going to waive all the

         22  parking for that housing.  There is going to be no

         23  housing provided.  Now we met with Diana Reyna just

         24  last week with the developer and the developer said,

         25  well the public parking, they're going to be able to
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          2  use the public parking, the housing people are going

          3  to be able to use the public parking for overnight

          4  parking. We can't have it both ways.  You can't say

          5  that they're not going to have cars when we've said

          6  their families and friends probably have cars even

          7  if the people living there may not have cars.  And

          8  when do they visit, they visit on the holidays, they

          9  visit on the weekends.  The young man said how he

         10  spent time in the parking lot taking a count, yes he

         11  did, and he mentioned how hot it was.  I know, I was

         12  there.  It was about 80 or 90 degrees that day.  Not

         13  too many people were shopping.  It was the middle of

         14  the week. Yes, I was there on Saturday, this very

         15  Saturday.  We were at a Farmers Market during the

         16  summer and extended months.  I couldn't even park in

         17  that lot, there were so few spaces.  It's not an

         18  underutilized lot.  It's a lot that has been allowed

         19  to remain in disrepair.  The City was so negligent

         20  in keeping of this lot, which by the way was created

         21  by the merchant's insistence.  They had gone to the

         22  then Borough President, the then Council Person,

         23  Councilman Robles, and the community board.  They

         24  were running that lot under a lease with the City as

         25  a public parking facility.  Because it was needed
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          2  then.  This was seven years ago.  It was the last

          3  municipal lot created.  It is, therefore, the newest

          4  municipal lot in that area and in the City.  So it

          5  is needed and if you think traffic has gotten less,

          6  I don't know where you're driving as a young man and

          7  young lady who testified/mentioned that they don't

          8  have cars.  I have a car, I'm not saying it's right

          9  to have cars, I'm not saying that we need more

         10  parking, we're not asking for more parking, but when

         11  you use a loophole and the loophole here is the 75

         12  percent which we raised from day one.  When they

         13  tell you that you're going to have more parking, 93

         14  spaces, or whatever they're talking, we have 83

         15  spaces now, it's based on the valet parking.

         16  Cramming cars into a smaller physical space using

         17  stackers.  When you do that, it does not allow for

         18  any growth.  If we were to expand, if we were to be

         19  able to attract the larger stores, Councilwoman

         20  Reyna was very influential in bringing Modells to

         21  our shopping strip, we'd like to keep Modells here.

         22  We have Radio Shack, but we need the parking. We

         23  need the parking to survive so our stores do not

         24  close so the jobs that are there and exist at this

         25  time are not lost for the very people you're trying
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          2  to build affordable housing for.  We are not asking,

          3  we have never said we don't want the affordable

          4  housing, but even when I spoke to Steve Leonard who

          5  is a Project Manager for the City Planning, I asked

          6  him after meeting with the Councilwoman and the

          7  developer last week, I said, did you ever look at

          8  the self parking and he said no we never did look at

          9  the self parking.  We were told by the developer

         10  that only 30 spaces could be put in there.  But it's

         11  funny because when I spoke to Richard Bereck

         12  (phonetic) who is, I forget his exact title but he

         13  works for the Borough President's Office, he said he

         14  had done a little sketch and he found he could

         15  probably get 40 spaces at least into that space, not

         16  counting the private property.  What they also

         17  haven't told you is that there's been no provision

         18  for any off street parking during the almost two

         19  years of construction.  That will paralyze if not

         20  put out these stores.  It can be done.  They don't

         21  want to phase in the construction.  We have asked

         22  for that from day one.  They have never even worked

         23  on that.  They have never looked at that.  These are

         24  the things that have to be looked at.  These are the

         25  things that have to be considered with the plan.
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          2  Developer has also, well let's see, we have

          3  Community Board One, yes, Community Board one did

          4  approve it, 40 to one they said, that's true, the

          5  open session of the Community Planning Board did.

          6  But it was five to four in the subcommittee which I

          7  think you understand if your subcommittee approves

          8  something, we're not looking, it was five to four.

          9  It was a very close vote at that time.  And they

         10  suggested also that DOT do a plan before this was

         11  done.  No plan has been done.  There's been no study

         12  done to support the economic growth of this

         13  community or how it will impact.  How do you know,

         14  you have somebody who shops there once in a while.

         15  I'm telling you as someone who's run a BID for five

         16  years and I've been involved with government

         17  agencies many times in my past, this will not work.

         18  Valet parking has been knocked down and opposed in

         19  many, many other municipal parking lot developments.

         20    It was opposed in Kings Highway.  They fought it

         21  vehemently and they won because it doesn't work.

         22  Why do malls have self parking?  Because it works

         23  for shoppers.  Shoppers like to come, park their

         24  cars.  They don't want to give their keys to

         25  someone.  They don't want to wait for something.
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          2  They don't want to have to tip. There's another

          3  expense.  You talk about the cost.  You can adjust

          4  the cost factor, so there are many things that have

          5  to be looked at before we can just rush into this.

          6  We're not trying to oppose the affordable housing

          7  but we ask why has this not been looked at properly?

          8    Why has it been allowed to come to this point?

          9  This should have been done.  They keep telling us we

         10  are under time restraints and I'm constantly

         11  reminded about the time restraints.  Well the time

         12  restraints, they had plenty of time to do designs

         13  that could accommodate this, in Long Island, in

         14  Flushing, in many other areas they build over a

         15  parking lot.  We were just told how they are going

         16  to put a nice landscaped area over the parking lot.

         17  This is the first time I've heard that it's been

         18  done to accommodate the residents in the area.  I

         19  was told that HPD required a landscaped area for

         20  this housing.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Ms. Cooney --

         22                 MS. COONEY:  I'm sorry.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  I'd like to

         24  ask you just to wrap it up.

         25                 MS. COONEY:  Okay.  I just wanted to
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          2  say, before you do make your vote, please to not

          3  just base it on the affordable housing because we do

          4  not oppose the affordable housing, but if you do not

          5  put in requirements that they have to re- examine

          6  these issues and work at something to help the

          7  merchants, give them tax incentives, give them

          8  parking, give us egress, please don't just

          9  arbitrarily approve this because of the affordable

         10  housing.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you

         12  very much and we appreciate your presence and your

         13  testimony and certainly your work on the BID and now

         14  I think we're okay actually.  You were the last

         15  person to testify on the subject.  I would now like

         16  to give Council Member Reyna an opportunity to speak

         17  on this subject.  Council Member.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Thank you Mr.

         19  Chair.  This is a huge moment as far as our

         20  Williamsburg Greenpoint rezoning back from 2005.

         21  This is a follow up to what was supposed to provide

         22  the first set of inclusionary zoning.  This was the

         23  prime example of whether or not this program would

         24  work and the developer, diligent enough, did his

         25  homework in identifying other land that would become
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          2  available, hence, what he was proposing if it worked

          3  on behalf of the City and behalf of the community.

          4  Clearly, two years later we're at this point where

          5  now we have to make a decision of disposing City-

          6  owned land that currently its use is only for

          7  parking spaces.  I value Graham Avenue.  I shopped

          8  as a young girl on Graham Avenue.  Continue to do so

          9  on occasion.  But at the current moment to salvage a

         10  municipal lot is not the goal here. The goal is to

         11  bring conformity of what a neighborhoods greatest

         12  need is right now, is the affordable housing

         13  preservation of a community where we will continue

         14  to see people shop for indigenous to the community

         15  on Graham Avenue.

         16                 The 152 units of housing being

         17  proposed on this lot is probably an astronomical

         18  scale compared to everything else we've been seeing

         19  the past five or six years and we cannot stall any

         20  longer.  Every day that goes by is another dozen

         21  families being displaced that cannot come back, that

         22  cannot find an apartment. Section 8 vouchers are not

         23  being accepted at the units that exist in the

         24  neighborhood.  So whether or not you have a subsidy

         25  to assist you with rent, it is not helping us.  We
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          2  need the units.  We need them to become available to

          3  exist.  I can't fathom that two years later we're

          4  just starting to see the first set of affordable

          5  housing units and we cannot delay this moment any

          6  longer.  I am in full favor of the affordable

          7  housing, granted there are issues that sill have to

          8  be resolved.  And in the last two weeks, we have

          9  made attempts to bring together all these parties.

         10  I have an e- mail addressed to Commissioner Joseph

         11  Palmeri, the Borough Commissioner to DOT, responding

         12  to our request of three major points of angular

         13  parking for proposals as well as extra meter

         14  parking.  It is right now being transferred to his

         15  engineers to assess the area to accommodate those

         16  requests.  I'd like to just mention those streets,

         17  Devoli Street between Graham Avenue and Humboldt.

         18  Humboldt Street from Boreum Street to Flushing

         19  Avenue.  Create angular parking on Varet, Cook,

         20  Segal, Borem, McKibbin Streets between Humboldt and

         21  Manhattan Avenue with the request for two hour meter

         22  parking.  Obviously the street parking is always

         23  better because the people have the accommodation of

         24  self parking.  The issue with valet and stackers,

         25  the provisions for 75 percent of the spaces to
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          2  replace what would be a municipal lot to now at

          3  least have a minimum of 75 percent was imposed by

          4  DOT as an accommodation.  No reference as to what

          5  type of parking, how to present a design to

          6  accommodate 75 percent.  The developers have decided

          7  to do a valet stacker type parking space.  That does

          8  not mean that we cannot look towards figuring out

          9  what other possibilities.  The meeting we had with

         10  the Merchants Associations two weeks ago was asking

         11  what if we were to include a vacant piece of

         12  property that they use as parking spaces to be

         13  included as a leasing proposition to allow for

         14  perhaps extra self parking accommodations.  To

         15  accommodate more parking spaces and that is still an

         16  open discussion with the Merchants Association.

         17  There were three major points discussed that were

         18  agreed upon, maximum self parking, the enter and

         19  exit from north to south and the interim parking for

         20  the merchants and shoppers during construction, all

         21  of which are currently being looked at by the

         22  developers.  They think they've identified certain

         23  sites.  The commitment from my part as a Council

         24  Member to discuss with the agency as far as DOT is

         25  concerned, working with the Mayor's Office to
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          2  accommodate more self parking spaces.  There is

          3  clearly apprehension from the BID that I feel we've

          4  been more than accommodating in listening to their

          5  concerns.  At the end of the day this isn't going to

          6  be an overnight solution, but we need to continue to

          7  discuss these issues to resolve the most we can in a

          8  realistic fashion.  And so as of this moment I want

          9  to ask for a favorable vote for this project based

         10  on the good faith effort of discussions,

         11  negotiations that have occurred, that are continuing

         12  to occur, the agency's commitment as far as the

         13  Department of Transportation with an active

         14  assessment of what they're committing to as far as

         15  placing the extra self parking spaces on street

         16  level and just based on the testimonies that you've

         17  just heard here today where the message is unified

         18  from the community in the preservation of a

         19  community in providing the affordable housing that's

         20  much needed as a priority and taking into

         21  consideration that we want to have a win win final

         22  vote.  Perhaps today we may not be in agreement, I

         23  think that this will be something that we are going

         24  to continue to work on towards the first day of

         25  construction.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you

          3  Council Member Reyna.  With that, seeing no other

          4  member of the public wishing to testify on the

          5  related items of Land Use 531 to 533, the Cook

          6  Street Housing Development, we'll close the hearing

          7  on those items and we're going to move to our final

          8  two items of the day.  I'm going to skip ahead to

          9  Land Use 439 Ms. Clark so that we will finish up

         10  with DEP.  This is non- ULURP No. 20075380HAK at 178

         11  Milford Street in the District of Council Member

         12  Erik Martin Dilan.

         13                 Ms. Clark.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Yes,

         15  L.U. 439 consists of the proposed disposition of one

         16  vacant City- owned lot located at 178 Milford Street

         17  for development under HPD's New Foundations program.

         18    The Developer, Armstrong Jackson, will construct

         19  one two family home for sale to an eligible

         20  purchaser. This is part of a larger development

         21  cluster in an adjacent councilmanic district that

         22  the Council approved earlier this year. Council

         23  Member Dilan has been briefed on this item and has

         24  indicated his support.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thanks.  You

          3  said Armstrong Jackson was the developer?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  That's

          5  correct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  How was

          7  Armstrong Jackson selected by HPD?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Sorry,

          9  through a competitive process as all of our New

         10  Foundations developers.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

         12  And also they'll be building one two story home you

         13  said?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  One

         15  two family home.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  I'm sorry,

         17  two family home.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  And that

         20  would be filled by an eligible purchaser?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  That's

         22  correct. Eligible purchasers who have income targets

         23  of up to 165 percent of the area median income for a

         24  family of four, which is $117,000.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you for
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          2  that.  And seeing no members of the public wishing

          3  to testify one way or the other on the subject of

          4  Land Use No. 439, non- ULURP No. 20075380HAK, we'll

          5  close the hearing on that item, and we'll open the

          6  hearing on our last item of the day.  Ms. Jackson if

          7  you would like any member of your team as well from

          8  DEP to introduce Land Use No. 542 which involves a

          9  wastewater treatment plant in Brewster.

         10                 So, welcome and if you just introduce

         11  yourself and introduce the item.

         12                 MS. JACKSON:  Thank you.  Good

         13  afternoon Chairman --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  You might

         15  want to turn on the microphone over there, so just

         16  hit the button.  Try it now.

         17                 MS. JACKSON:  Now?  Good afternoon

         18  Chairman Garodnick, my name is Sandra Jackson, and

         19  Members of the Subcommittee as well, good afternoon

         20  to you.  I am Sandra Jackson, I am in charge of the

         21  watershed unit of the Bureau of Legal Affairs of the

         22  New York City Department of Environmental

         23  Protection.  I want to thank you for the opportunity

         24  to testify today on the proposed disposition of

         25  City- owned property and the Brewster Wastewater
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          2  Treatment Plant to the Village of Brewster in Putnam

          3  County, New York.

          4                 Currently the Brewster Wastewater

          5  Treatment Plant and the land upon which it sits is

          6  owned by the City of New York, although it is

          7  currently being operated by the Village of Brewster

          8  which holds the current State Pollution Discharge

          9  Elimination System, or SPDES permit which is issued

         10  by the Department of Environmental Conservation, New

         11  York State.  The prior Brewster Wastewater Treatment

         12  Plant was built in the early 1950's and was actually

         13  one of several that the City has owned over the last

         14  100 plus years, and it had reached the period of

         15  being beyond its useful life by the year 2000 and

         16  needed to be completely rebuilt rather than simply

         17  upgraded and updated.  The City's watershed rules

         18  and regulations which were adopted in 1997 require

         19  that all wastewater treatment plants in the New York

         20  City watershed, whether City- owned or owned by

         21  others, be upgraded to incorporate certain

         22  technologies and to advance certain levels of

         23  treatment.  The City has reconstructed several of

         24  the wastewater treatment plants that it owns and

         25  operates in the watershed and has agreed to pay for
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          2  the course of upgrading non- City- owned plants as

          3  part of the historic 1997 Watershed Memorandum of

          4  Agreement.

          5                 Since 1997, the City has been

          6  actively funding and overseeing the completion of

          7  necessary upgrades at over 100 non City- owned

          8  treatment plants in the City's watershed.  Instead

          9  of upgrading the Brewster plant, DEP entered into an

         10  agreement with the Village of Brewster in the year

         11  2000, which provided among other things that

         12  Brewster would design and build a new plant on a

         13  parcel of City- owned land which was in the vicinity

         14  of the existing old plant and the City would

         15  contribute up to a certain amount to pay for the

         16  costs of design and construction.  Once rebuilt, the

         17  plant would be conveyed to Brewster which would

         18  assume the responsibility for the operation and

         19  maintenance of the plant and its sewage collection

         20  system which is also part of this project and funded

         21  by the City.  In addition, the agreement

         22  contemplates eventual transfer of a second City-

         23  owned parcel also in this vicinity which is

         24  currently a paved parking lot upon which the Village

         25  will construct a multi- story parking garage.
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          2                 The City also agreed to contribute up

          3  to a maximum amount to help defray the annual

          4  operation and maintenance cost of the plant.  DEP

          5  has exclusive use of a brand new laboratory which is

          6  a separate building in the vicinity of the plant at

          7  no cost to the City for rent or operation of

          8  maintenance expenses and this is in perpetuity.

          9                 In addition to the projects water

         10  quality benefits this arrangement offers a number of

         11  other advantages to the City. Having the Village

         12  complete the construction resulted in a lower

         13  construction cost than if the City had undertaken

         14  the design and construction itself which it would

         15  have had to do.  The City will also save by

         16  eliminating our obligation to pay real property

         17  taxes on the new wastewater treatment plant, on

         18  avoiding future plant reconstruction costs, and on

         19  reduced future wastewater treatment plant operation

         20  and maintenance expenses.  Under the agreement we

         21  will continue to contribute toward the operation and

         22  maintenance expenses but that amount is capped at

         23  350,000 per year, although it does allow for a

         24  modest two percent annual inflation rate increase.

         25  The property taxes which were assessed on the course
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          2  of construction and the Real Property Tax Law for

          3  this year are estimated to exceed $585,000.  The

          4  City is responsible for the taxes in this year, '07-

          5   '08, since it was the record owner on the Taxable

          6  Status Date, which was March 1st, when the taxes are

          7  fixed and we would continue to be responsible in

          8  future years for a similar amount if we did not

          9  convey the title to Brewster.  Once we do we will be

         10  relieved of any future property tax obligation.

         11  This alone obviously represents a huge savings to

         12  the City.  Further, Brewster will have the full

         13  responsibility for compliance with its SPDES permit,

         14  for which the penalties for non- compliance can be

         15  significant.

         16                 The new Brewster Wastewater Treatment

         17  Plant is now complete and ready along with the

         18  property on which it sits for conveyance to the

         19  Village of Brewster.  The conveyance has already

         20  been approved by the New York City Water Board which

         21  must release the property from its leasehold

         22  interest and has also been approved by Deputy Mayor

         23  Doctoroff, on behalf of the Mayor, under General

         24  Municipal Law Section 72- h.  Section 72- h requires

         25  that notice be provided to the City Council, which
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          2  has been given in a letter from DEP Commissioner

          3  Emily Lloyd to Speaker Christine Quinn and the

          4  Members of the Council.

          5                 I want to thank you again for this

          6  opportunity to testify.  I would be happy to answer

          7  any questions you may have and I am joined by

          8  colleague Michael Meyer from our Westchester Office

          9  who has been the Project Manager and has overseen

         10  all of the construction and most of the dealings

         11  with the Village Administration.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you Ms.

         13  Jackson.  Just to follow up on a few of the points

         14  that you made.  Today, Brewster operates the

         15  Wastewater Treatment Plant that is owned, the plant

         16  is owned and the land is owned by the City of New

         17  York.  Is that right?  Or at least until it became

         18  not useful in the year of 2000?

         19                 MS. JACKSON:  Well the City has owned

         20  and operated the plant for over 100 years and with

         21  the new construction, because of the capacity of the

         22  plant and other things since it is a new plant have

         23  changed when the State was issuing the new permit

         24  for the new plant, it was issued in the name of the

         25  Village who has brought on an operator to run it and
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          2  they are doing so at this time.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, and the

          4  plan was for there to be a new plant to bring it up

          5  to the appropriate codes and specifications and that

          6  was done on not the same parcel that we were talking

          7  about previously but another parcel of City- owned

          8  land on which there was a new treatment plant that

          9  was constructed.  Is that correct?

         10                 MS. JACKSON:  That's right.  It's

         11  actually the same sort of greater configuration --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Same general

         13  area.

         14                 MS. JACKSON:  The new plant is

         15  actually in a more desirable spot on our property

         16  then the old one as far as water quality benefits

         17  are concerned.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, so, the

         19  application here is the approval of the disposition

         20  of that land to the Village of Brewster.

         21                 MS. JACKSON:  The land where the new

         22  plant is and the plant itself.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  And the plant

         24  itself.

         25                 MS. JACKSON:  That's correct.  And
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          2  then as I mentioned there's another parcel that was

          3  part of the global agreement that we entered in the

          4  year of 2000, that's used as a parking lot because

          5  the train station is there as well and the City owns

          6  this lot and that's part of a later conveyance.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  That's not

          8  part of this --

          9                 MS. JACKSON:  That's not before you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  --

         11  Application today.

         12                 MS. JACKSON:  No it is not.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  But that's

         14  been in the conversations that you have that the

         15  City has suggested that this might be part of a

         16  later disposition.  Is that right?

         17                 MS. JACKSON:  Well yes.  We entered

         18  into an agreement which I believe was an attachment

         19  to the package that was submitted to Speaker Quinn

         20  and in fact this conveyance has been approved by the

         21  Water Board already.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  The second

         23  one.

         24                 MS. JACKSON:  The second one.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  The one with
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          2  the parking lot.

          3                 MS. JACKSON:  Yes, we're only

          4  mentioning it so as to give you a complete picture.

          5  There's part of the land that is going to be used

          6  for some passive recreation up in Brewster so there

          7  are other aspects that are not before you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, and I

          9  understand the benefit to the City of New York where

         10  the City contributes a certain amount toward

         11  expenses, which is capped, property taxes are the

         12  obligation for property taxes on the new one are

         13  eliminated. What I don't understand is other than

         14  the acquisition of the land and perhaps the title to

         15  the treatment plant, what the Village of Brewster

         16  gets out of this?

         17                 MS. JACKSON:  Right, well at first --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Obviously my

         19  responsibilities are here in the City of New York,

         20  but I don't completely understand that.  Can you

         21  help me understand that?

         22                 MS. JACKSON:  Yes, well part of,

         23  again, this global project that we have been working

         24  on for ten years, it's my tenth anniversary this

         25  month at DEP and it was just about the first thing I
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          2  started with when I arrived, we also funded as part

          3  of this project, a new sewage system in the Village

          4  which they were desperately in need of.  They had a

          5  lot of failing septics which was of concern to us as

          6  well because of the water quality issues, but also

          7  obviously to the people who live in the Village.

          8  And so in order to be able to sewer the Village and

          9  have everything sent to the plants this was all part

         10  of the deal that the new plant was larger and the

         11  new sewage system was built and so it's making the

         12  Village obviously a much more desirable place to

         13  live and you know for the future for some growth to

         14  occur there that can be adequately handled by

         15  infrastructure that they could not have afforded to

         16  pay for.  So if we had just kind of upgraded our old

         17  plant or rebuilt something that was an incline

         18  substitution that met our regulations for tertiary

         19  treatment of the wastewater, this would not have

         20  really helped them.  So by putting this big project

         21  together, it is.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Got it.

         23  Thank you, that helps.  And by the way do you

         24  anticipate having similar sorts of arrangements with

         25  other Villages in the future or is this a unique
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          2  situation here?

          3                 MS. JACKSON:  This is fairly unique.

          4  We had actually prior to the formal effective date

          5  of the Watershed Regulations, we had already rebuilt

          6  several of our plants in the west of Hudson,

          7  Margaretville, Tannersville, Grand Gorge, Pine Hill,

          8  and we're still operating those and providing a

          9  service to those communities.  We actually were

         10  approached for just the sort of talking points at

         11  one time with Port Jervis but we're not doing it.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

         13  Council Member Dickens.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you so

         15  much Mr. Chair.  Is this a transfer or a sale to

         16  Brewster?

         17                 MS. JACKSON:  A transfer.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  It's a

         19  transfer so New York City is going to give the land

         20  to Brewster.

         21                 MS. JACKSON:  Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  And in

         23  exchange for that we will save on the real estate

         24  taxes.

         25                 MS. JACKSON:  Well we will save on
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          2  the real estate taxes, we will save on the operation

          3  and maintenance costs which are enormous for these

          4  kinds of plants.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Can you tell

          6  me about what the O&M runs annually on the new

          7  development, the new plant because it should go down

          8  on the new plant instead of up?

          9                 MS. JACKSON:  Yes, I'm going to allow

         10  Mr. Meyer to speak to that question if it's okay.

         11                 MR. MEYER:  Good afternoon.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  If you could

         13  introduce yourself before you get started.

         14                 MR. MEYER:  Sure, my name is Michael

         15  Meyer.  I'm with the New York City DEP and the

         16  Project Manager for the Brewster Project.  The O&M

         17  costs for the new facility are actually a little bit

         18  higher than for the old facility, mainly because

         19  it's approximately twice the capacity of the

         20  facility and also the additional upgraded equipment

         21  do require additional operation and maintenance

         22  expenses.  The old treatment plant was a secondary

         23  treatment plant and this one is a tertiary treatment

         24  plant so there's additional operational practices

         25  that have to go into it. The approximate cost is
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          2  approximately $450,000.  This is the first year so

          3  we don't know, we're still working off estimates.

          4  That's the projected cost.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  All right,

          6  so the $450,000 is for the new plant which is

          7  higher.  It has a higher capacity than the old one.

          8  And in exchange for all of this benefit to New York

          9  City we also upgraded the sewer system in Brewster.

         10  Is that correct?

         11                 MR. MEYER:  That's correct.

         12  Approximately half of the Village had been sewered

         13  and now the entire Village will be sewered, and

         14  again as Sandy mentioned that was for both the water

         15  quality and also it was part of the deal to have the

         16  Village take on ownership of the new plant.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  So we're

         18  transferring the property to them, we've upgraded

         19  Brewster's sewer system, and of the 450,000 at least

         20  for one year we're going to pay 350,000 of the O&M.

         21                 MR. MEYER:  Correct.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  I just

         23  wanted to see where because my Chairman asked what

         24  was the benefit to Brewster, I'm trying to ascertain

         25  the benefit to New York City.  So that's why I
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          2  wanted to be clear about how this operated because I

          3  also did a little calculation here while I was

          4  sitting here listening to see how many years it

          5  would take in order for the O&M operating costs,

          6  from 350 with the two percent modest inflation it

          7  would take us somewhere around seven years to get to

          8  what the cost of the taxes that we were paying.  And

          9  I just wanted to use it as a comparison because I'm

         10  not quite so sure if I see the benefit to New York

         11  City taxpayers, but I thank you very much for your

         12  testimony.

         13                 MS. JACKSON:  If I could just add to

         14  that, we would be paying that half million dollars

         15  or so every year to them and we would still have to

         16  operate that plant as we have been with our own DEP

         17  employees and doing, you know, we will still be

         18  paying that kind of an amount.  It's not that it's

         19  really costing them more or us more.  So in some

         20  cases it does cost us more.  The cost of

         21  construction to rebuild the plant had this been done

         22  as a City project would have been, you know,

         23  considerably higher than what the Village was able

         24  to do as well.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Who paid for
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          2  that construction by the way for the new plant?

          3                 MS. JACKSON:  The City paid for that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  So New York

          5  City paid for the construction, New York City is

          6  also going to pay for the O&M up until 350 and New

          7  York City also paid for the upgrading of the sewer

          8  system in Brewster?

          9                 MS. JACKSON:  That's right.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  I just

         11  wanted to be clear that I had it all in my mind.

         12  Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  So then maybe

         14  you should, I think that Council Member Dickens has

         15  raised some interesting questions, so then help us

         16  understand the math then as to the benefit to New

         17  York City from a financial perspective.  I mean we

         18  did not, I don't think you mentioned the exact

         19  amount for the property taxes, but if you could just

         20  take us through that, it seemed clear in your

         21  testimony, but now Council Member Dickens raised

         22  some questions which are raising some issues in my

         23  own mind.

         24                 MS. JACKSON:  Yes, well --

         25                 MR. MEYER:  I can -- I think it's
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          2  important to remember that as Sandy had mentioned,

          3  the City has been providing wastewater treatment for

          4  the Village of Brewster since the late 1800's and

          5  the City saw in perpetuity we were going to have

          6  future obligations, capital, O&M plus property taxes

          7  in the Village of Brewster.  So what this agreement

          8  allows us to do, the capital costs we don't have

          9  anymore because now the Village owns the treatment

         10  plant, further, the O&M costs have been now capped

         11  so the City's cost for O&M are now limited and then

         12  the last of the three items that the City pays is

         13  the property taxes on the facility. And this, by

         14  conveying the property to the Village, the third leg

         15  is what's going to allow us to avoid this half

         16  million dollar cost annually.  So what the City was

         17  trying to do, you know we had this obligation every

         18  thirty or forty years we had to rebuild a new

         19  treatment plant in Brewster, this is going to be the

         20  last one in Brewster that we have to build and

         21  that's what the advantage of the agreement is to the

         22  City.  It allows us to walk away from the Village of

         23  Brewster with just our O&M obligation and allows us

         24  to avoid the capital cost in perpetuity and future

         25  property taxes to the perpetuity.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  So I guess

          3  your point is, if I understand it, there otherwise

          4  would not be a cap on the Operation and Management

          5  costs.  The property tax would exist for the City

          6  and there would be the ongoing capital costs as well

          7  if the City were to have started from scratch on its

          8  own preexisting lot or in that other plant which

          9  existed.  Is that right?

         10                 MR. MEYER:  Correct, every 30 or 40

         11  years we would have had to build a new plant because

         12  they only last every 30 to 40 years.  So, we've

         13  avoided having that perpetual obligation in the

         14  Village by having the Village now take over and they

         15  are now the SPDES permit holder and so they will

         16  have that obligation in the future, not the City.

         17                 MS. JACKSON:  For example, we rebuilt

         18  in the early 90's three of our plants in the west of

         19  Hudson Watershed which I believe the capital costs

         20  alone were about $50 million and that was 14 years

         21  ago and we have to continue to run and operate those

         22  plants.  We pay taxes, and as the equipment gets old

         23  or requires replacement we have to do that.  And in

         24  this case we'll be kind of limiting our future

         25  obligation that we have.  Under the MOA with the
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          2  upgrade of the non- City plant from the watershed,

          3  we are paying actually even though these are

          4  privately owned or owned by other municipalities or

          5  school districts, we are having to pay the

          6  additional O&M expenses of running these plants

          7  because it is our regulations that required them to

          8  be upgraded.  So, you know, wastewater treatment is

          9  one of the major concerns and then proper ways for

         10  the treatment, enhanced ways for the treatment is

         11  one of the major factors of our filtration avoidance

         12  and of water quality in general.  So this is, you

         13  know, an ongoing obligation this City has.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  We have

         15  questions brewing over here but I just wanted to

         16  understand because there was a difference between

         17  your response to one of the questions that Council

         18  Member Dickens asked and what I understood from your

         19  testimony.  From your testimony I understood that

         20  the Village of Brewster was designing and building a

         21  new plant and that that was there financial

         22  obligation and that the City would contribute up to

         23  a certain amount to pay for the cost of design and

         24  construction. Now in response to Council Member

         25  Dickens it sounded like this was fully City
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          2  obligation to design and construct the new plant.

          3  Could you just clarify what you meant by those two

          4  because --

          5                 MS. JACKSON:  Under the agreement

          6  that we entered into in 2000, the City agreed to a

          7  fixed amount which was later amended upwards because

          8  of the delays in the project when the BIDs were

          9  finally taken by the Village the amount allotted was

         10  insufficient and at that point we would have either

         11  had to cancel the project or add some additional

         12  funding to it.  And so the Village did use some

         13  funds that it obtained elsewhere.  Mike, perhaps you

         14  can --

         15                 MR. MEYER:  The Village and the City

         16  had worked together to get grants from outside

         17  agencies upwards of three million dollars towards

         18  the cost of the project.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  But what

         20  percentage of the design and construction is paid

         21  for by the City as opposed to the-

         22                 MR. MEYER:  The majority.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  The majority.

         24                 Council Member Ignizio has questions.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO:  Yes, I have
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          2  somewhat easier questions, but ones that can be

          3  answered I think easier.  How much did the City pay

          4  for the construction of the new plant?

          5                 MS. JACKSON:  The new plant was

          6  approximately $15 million.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO:  Fifteen

          8  million?

          9                 MS. JACKSON:  Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO:  Okay, how

         11  much did the DEP spend on the sewer system in

         12  Brewster?

         13                 MR. MEYER:  A similar amount,

         14  approximately --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO:  Fifteen

         16  million dollars to do the rest of the town, the

         17  other half of the town.

         18                 MR. MEYER:  Probably maybe about 12,

         19  something like that.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO:  Twelve

         21  million.  And does the agreement upon requiring a

         22  new plant, does the City need to add or allocate any

         23  funds for a new plant?  How long do new plants last

         24  did you say?

         25                 MS. JACKSON:  About 30 years.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO:  About 30.

          3  So 30 years from now is there a provision whereby

          4  the City will have to anti up again?

          5                 MS. JACKSON:  No.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO:  No.  They

          7  will not have to --

          8                 MS. JACKSON:  No.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO:  -- Of that.

         10  And thank you very much.  As a former Assembly

         11  Member I just want to be very clear that the Village

         12  of Brewster and the Villages throughout our

         13  watershed see New York City as a cash cow for land.

         14  They either cannot or will not construct upon and

         15  perhaps that's the agreement the City engages in

         16  throughout the watershed, but I want to point out to

         17  the Members of this Committee and to the entire City

         18  Council that right here in the City of New York, in

         19  my District, we have areas, significant areas that

         20  are not sewered, that are not planned on being

         21  sewered as of yet and there are people in the great

         22  City of New York, while the City is allocating funds

         23  and spending money sewering the Village of Brewster,

         24  it's not going on in my own District.  So I think

         25  while the deals that they may be cutting potentially
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          2  are advantages for the City as a whole in terms of

          3  the watershed, we ought sewer and allocate our funds

          4  towards our residents prior.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you

          7  Council Member Ignizio.  Let me go back to Council

          8  Member Dickens.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you.

         10  Thank you so much.  Council Member Ignizio maybe

         11  your constituents need to move to Brewster, but in

         12  any case, just one last question please.

         13                 The $350,000 per year, O&M expense

         14  with the two percent annual for inflation, is this

         15  for the 30 years, is this forever, is this capped at

         16  350 or to remain, or is the two percent, can that be

         17  changed and amended, and is it written into the deed

         18  transfer?

         19                 MS. JACKSON:  There is a separate

         20  operation and maintenance agreement which we have

         21  not fully executed at this point with the Village.

         22  The terms of which were in the initial agreement

         23  that was entered into in the year 2000 that's

         24  covering this 350,000.  This is basically a

         25  perpetual obligation as the City has taken on, with
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          2  the other hundred wastewater treatment plants, which

          3  was part of as I said earlier, the Watershed

          4  Memorandum of Agreement that we were required to pay

          5  the entire cost of upgrading all of these plants and

          6  the incremental increase in the operation and

          7  maintenance costs because of the upgrades that we

          8  require because it's only the City that requires

          9  them to protect the drinking water.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  So since

         11  this agreement has not been executed fully, it is a

         12  possibility that that 350 could go up?

         13                 MS. JACKSON:  No.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  It's going

         15  to remain at 350 and it will never go up other than

         16  the two percent inflationary factor.

         17                 MS. JACKSON:  Yes ma'am that's

         18  correct.  That was what was agreed upon in 2000 when

         19  the City first signed this agreement with the

         20  Village of Brewster.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  So this is a

         22  payment that the City of New York will make forever?

         23                 MS. JACKSON:  That's correct.  As

         24  long as there is a wastewater treatment plant

         25  operating in the Village, we will be contributing.
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          2  And as I noted also, part of this deal was that

          3  there was constructed a separate free standing

          4  laboratory which was included in the amounts that we

          5  paid obviously, and that is staffed by DEP personnel

          6  but all the operation and maintenance and utilities

          7  and everything for that building are included within

          8  that amount that we are giving them.  We don't pay

          9  any rent, we don't pay any maintenance costs, any

         10  repairs, that building is also covered within that

         11  O&M payment that we're making.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you so

         13  much.

         14                 MS. JACKSON:  And that's exclusively

         15  operated.  And if I may ma'am, just one last thing

         16  that I did want to mention to address the

         17  Councilman's concerns about the sewering of Brewster

         18  and the fact that certain areas of the City may not

         19  be.  This was done as much for the City's water

         20  quality concerns for that part of the watershed.

         21  You had properties with failing, miserably failing,

         22  septics, where the wastewater was not being treated

         23  at all and that was going into our system.  And

         24  since that part of the system is critical in that it

         25  is closer to the City and you know definitely this
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          2  was something that was as much a water quality

          3  concern for the City and the City residents that

          4  drink the water, that is affected there as it was,

          5  it certainly was not designed on our part to benefit

          6  the citizens of Brewster over the citizens of New

          7  York City.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO:  Yes, I want

          9  to acknowledge though, I acknowledge that my point

         10  of that is people on this panel, primarily those who

         11  are from the great borough of Manhattan would find

         12  it shocking that in this day and age there are

         13  places in the City of New York that do not have

         14  sewers and who's sewers are failing and septics are

         15  failing and who have to go into their pocket to

         16  spend 10, 15, 20 thousand dollars to put in a septic

         17  tank only for five and ten years down the road to

         18  have that replaced with a sewer system.  And while

         19  budgets are about priorities, I think a priority

         20  ought be to sewer the entire City of New York and at

         21  the very least begin the drawing plan for areas that

         22  have not even been put on a plan by DEP and I think

         23  that's to their detriment.  I think it's misguided.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Excuse me, I

         25  apologize to my colleague for the facetious
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          2  statement I made but it was just so shocking.  But

          3  thank you, thank you so much Ms. Jackson for your

          4  enlightened statement and maybe the City Council

          5  needs to review the other 99.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Let me just

          7  understand because I just want to be very clear

          8  about the dollars and sense here for the City

          9  because it was clear to me from your testimony when

         10  I thought that the Village of Brewster was paying

         11  for this. What is the financial benefit to the City

         12  as result of taking this route as opposed to the

         13  route of just building, designing, constructing it

         14  on its own and owning the property itself for the

         15  long term?

         16                 MS. JACKSON:  Well financially, or --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Yes, I'm

         18  talking about the dollars that we're expending on an

         19  annual basis, property taxes that would be paying on

         20  an annual basis.  Tell us how we're better off or

         21  worse off in dollars and sense here in the City of

         22  New York as a result of this.

         23                 MS. JACKSON:  Well as indicated, this

         24  plant had to be rebuilt one way or the other at this

         25  time, this was not rebuilt at this point to benefit
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          2  the Village, it was beyond, it was being held

          3  together basically with Scotch tape.  So whether we

          4  funded Brewster's building it, which by the way just

          5  to be clear, everything that was done was not just

          6  where we handed over a blank check and they went and

          7  did what they wanted to do.  We were involved for

          8  the last, as I said, almost ten years in developing

          9  what was going to be built and how it was going to

         10  be built and so on and so forth, and we did provide

         11  the funding which would have in our view, even

         12  though the amount did increase over time, be greater

         13  had the City of New York gone out as we did in other

         14  areas of the watershed to build a brand new plant.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  So just to be

         16  clear, we would have had to pay for the plant

         17  completely --

         18                 MS. JACKSON:  That's correct.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  -- Which was

         20  done basically, which we did here, we would have had

         21  to pay an uncapped number of operation and

         22  maintenance cost, no cap on that at all --

         23                 MS. JACKSON:  Right.  And staffing --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  And staffing

         25   --
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          2                 MS. JACKSON:  -- Our own staffing --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  -- And we

          4  would have also had to pay the property taxes as a

          5  result of owning that property.

          6                 MS. JACKSON:  That's correct.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Do you have a

          8  30 year aggregate number as to what the benefit is

          9  to the City of doing it this way as opposed to doing

         10  it the other way?

         11                 MS. JACKSON:  No.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Council

         13  Member Dickens.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  One last

         15  question.  Is this part of the City's filtration

         16  effort Citywide?  Yes or no?

         17                 MS. JACKSON:  No, this is, no.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  No it's not.

         19                 MS. JACKSON:  Not this particular

         20  location.  But obviously all of the West of Hudson

         21  plants were FAD related because that's part of the

         22  Catskill Delaware System.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  So this one

         24  is just one separate and apart and set aside.  This

         25  is money that the City spent but is not part of
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          2  that?  Is that correct?

          3                 MS. JACKSON:  Of the Fad money?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Yes.

          5                 MS. JACKSON:  No.

          6                 MR. MEYER:  It's not Fad money, but

          7  again it is one of the treatment plants that was

          8  required to be upgraded as part of the MOA.  All of

          9  the treatment plants, whether they're Fad basins or

         10  non- Fad basins they had to be upgraded.

         11                 MS. JACKSON:  Right, so of the plants

         12  in the upgrade program, there are certain ones that

         13  are on the schedule that are for the Catskill

         14  Delaware System and there are others that are part

         15  of the Croton system where we are building the

         16  filter plant.  But they're all required under our

         17  City watershed rules and regulations to have the

         18  enhanced levels of tertiary treatment wherever

         19  located, as long as it's within the watershed.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you

         21  very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

         23  What I would like to do on this application is we're

         24  on a clock, we have a letter dated August 20th, I

         25  don't know exactly when it was received, but there
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          2  are some questions which have been raised as to the

          3  dollar amounts that the City is doing better

          4  relative to this proposal if it had done a different

          5  route.  What I want to do is lay this over until

          6  tomorrow morning right before Land Use and we'd like

          7  to ask you to provide us with the answers to those

          8  questions because some of them have been raised here

          9  and they're real questions and it became a little

         10  confusing in our exchange back and forth as to what

         11  exactly the ultimate dollar savings would be to the

         12  City of New York by going forward with this plan.

         13  And not to doubt that there is the benefit to the

         14  City because it seems like there is because I can

         15  understand what you're saying on capital costs and

         16  the capped operation and maintenance and the

         17  property tax as well, but we'd like you to break

         18  that down for us.  So what we will do is we're going

         19  to vote on all the other items today.  We will lay

         20  this one over until tomorrow morning.  We're meeting

         21  for Land Use at 10:00, so we'll call this one for

         22  9:15.  We have all the Subcommittees tomorrow

         23  morning so it's just going to be one big hodgepodge

         24  of Subcommittee meetings so we'll all be here

         25  anyway. So what I would like to do now is ask you
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          2  guys to be present for that so we could just follow-

          3  up with those specific questions.  Do you understand

          4  what we're looking for?

          5                 MS. JACKSON:  Yes, I think so.  You

          6  want an analysis of the --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Cost benefit

          8  to the City for this.

          9                 MS. JACKSON:  Cost benefit.  Okay.

         10                 MR. MEYER:  If I may just add one

         11  thing.  I think at this stage the construction of

         12  the treatment plant and the collections system has

         13  been completed.  The critical element now is we're

         14  just trying to avoid a tax bill come May.  And the

         15  other costs we're going to incur regardless of

         16  whether we transfer the property or not --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Then your

         18  explanation tomorrow morning in your follow up

         19  letter will be very, very easy.

         20                 MR. MEYER:  Okay.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, but we

         22  just want you to lay it out so that you can show us

         23  what the property tax benefit will be over time,

         24  what the operation and maintenance would likely have

         25  been if it were not capped at 350 per annum, that's
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          2  what we want.  Okay?  Terrific.  With that I don't

          3  see any other members of the public wishing to

          4  testify on the Land Use 542.  We're going to leave

          5  the hearing on that one.  I can temporarily close

          6  the hearing on Land Use 542 and we're going to lay

          7  that item over until tomorrow morning.  We're going

          8  to couple together, for the purposes of voting, all

          9  the other items we had hearings on today.  The Chair

         10  on all the other items recommends an aye vote, and

         11  I'll ask the Counsel to call the role.

         12                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Chair

         13  Garodnick.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Aye.

         15                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

         16  Member Baez.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ:  Aye.

         18                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

         19  Member Gonzalez.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  Aye.

         21                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

         22  Member Dickens.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Aye.

         24                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

         25  Member Ignizio.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO:  Aye.

          3                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  The vote

          4  is five in the affirmative, none in the negative,

          5  and no abstentions on all of the coupled items.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you

          7  very much and we stand in recess.

          8                 (Hearing recessed at 2:58 p.m.)
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